
 

 
1 

 

 

Nelson County Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 18, 2024 
 

Present:  Chair Mary Kathryn Allen and Commissioners Mike Harman, Robin Hauschner, William Smith 
and Phil Proulx. Board of Supervisors Representative Ernie Reed 

Staff Present: Dylan Bishop, Director 

Call to Order: Chair Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM in the General District Courtroom, 
County Courthouse, Lovingston.  

 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



 

 
2 

 

 



 

 
3 

 

 

 



 

 
4 

 

Applicant Sapna Bansal at 10761 Thomas Nelson Hwy noted that it is hard for passersby to see their 
business on Route 29 so they want more signage to advertise their business. 

Mr. Harman asked what the status of the residence is. Mr. Bansal noted that it is utilized as a temporary 
residence for himself when he is in town and is not a permanent residence. 

Mr. Hauschner asked if the requested Business zoning would affect the existing apartment use. Ms. 
Bishop noted that it would not. He asked if the request originated as a result of seeking additional 
signage, and confirmed that this was not a result of the property being out of compliance. Ms. Bishop 
confirmed. 

Chari Allen opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. The public hearing closed at 7:04 p.m. with no 
speakers present. 

Ms. Proulx indicated that she doesn’t have a problem with the rezoning but wanted to point out that 
even though they currently have no other plans for the property, by rezoning to B-1 any of those uses 
could go be approved in the future. Mr. Hauschner asked if future expansion crossed onto adjoining A-1 
zoned land, would that have any effect. Ms. Bishop noted that both parcels are part of this request, and 
that this area is also located in a flood zone. She added that should they acquire additional property 
zoned A-1 and wanted to utilize it for expansion of the business use, they would have to apply to rezone 
that property as well. Chair Allen noted some of the by-right uses listed in the B-1 District. Mr. Harman 
asked if there was other B-1 zoning in the vicinity. Ms. Bishop indicated that this property is located in 
the northern area of Lovingston, so is not immediately adjoined by B-1 zoning, but is in the vicinity as 
shown by the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map. Mr. Hauschner noted that there are a few B-1 
zoned parcels just south of the subject property on Cannery Loop. Ms. Bishop noted that there are 
sporadic commercial uses on Route 29, and believes that the Comprehensive Plan addresses this type of 
development on the Route 29 corridor. Mr. Smith noted that this is a long-time business in the County 
and should be supported being located on a 4 lane highway, and recalls when it used to be a pool hall. 

Mr. Harman made a motion to recommend approval of rezoning request #240289 for Sunny Mountain 
Store from A-1 to B-1. Mr. Smith seconded. 

Yes: 

Mike Harman 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen  

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner  

William Smith 

 

Ms. Bishop indicated that she did not have the 2025 Schedule available for review yet. Chair Allen noted 
we had a joint work session this afternoon, and asked Mr. Hauschner what time he might be able to 



 

 
5 

 

attend to ensure adequate participation in the work sessions by all members. They suggested setting the 
time for the next work session at 6:00 p.m. Ms. Bishop noted that she could send a meeting poll to 
determine other days that might work, acknowledging the difficulty of coordinating this with other 
board and committee meetings. The Planning Commission consensus was for the next work session to 
be February 26 at 6:00 p.m. 

Board of Supervisors Report 

Mr. Reed noted that the public hearing on Wild Rose SUP and siting agreement last week was held, and 
was really interesting and challenging because the comments were fairly evenly distributed. He 
acknowledged that all issues raised on both sides are fairly significant and will likely be on the Board’s 
agenda for January. He indicated that there is concern that the state will take away local oversight for 
utility scale solar projects. Chair Allen asked if they would be voting at that meeting, and noted that the 
Board should not base their decision on potential legislation. Mr. Reed noted that this would be his last 
Planning Commission meeting and noted it has been beneficial to be a part of it and hopes he has 
contributed. He thanked the Commissioners. Ms. Proulx noted she was appreciative of how thorough he 
has been. Chair Allen noted that she appreciates his many years of service on the Commission. Mr. 
Harman noted that Mr. Reed has always been his expert on water and sewer. Mr. Smith also thanked 
him for his service. 

 

Ms. Proulx motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:19 p.m. Mr. Hauschner seconded the motion.  

Yes: 

Phil Proulx 

Mike Harman 

Robin Hauschner  

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen  

William Smith 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Dylan M. Bishop, CZA, CFM 

Director of Planning & Zoning 


